FOREST PRESERVE DISTRICT EMPLOYEES' ANNUITY AND BENEFIT FUND OF COOK COUNTY, A COMPONENT UNIT OF FOREST PRESERVE DISTRICT OF COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2009

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS WITH ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008

CONTENTS

	PAGE
Report of Independent Auditors	1
Management's Discussion and Analysis	3 - 3e
Combining Statements of Pension Plan and Postemployment Healthcare Plan Net Assets	4
Combining Statements of Changes in Pension Plan and Postemployment Healthcare Plan Net Assets	5
Notes to Financial Statements	6
Required Supplementary Information	
Schedule of Funding Progress	20
Schedule of Employer Contributions	21
Notes to Schedule of Funding Progress and Schedule of Employer Contributions	22
Additional Information	
Schedules of Administrative Expenses and Professional and Consulting Fees	23
Schedules of Investment Expenses	24
Additions By Source	25
Deductions By Type	25
Schedule of Taxes Receivable	. 26



REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

To the Board of Trustees of Forest Preserve District Employees' Annuity and Benefit Fund of Cook County

We have audited the accompanying combining statements of pension plan and postemployment healthcare plan net assets of Forest Preserve District Employees' Annuity and Benefit Fund of Cook County (the Plan) as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the related combining statements of changes in pension plan and postemployment healthcare plan net assets for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Plan's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by the Plan's management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial status of Forest Preserve District Employees' Annuity and Benefit Fund of Cook County as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 and the changes in its financial status for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Management's Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 through 3e, and the required supplementary information consisting of the schedule of funding progress, the schedule of employer contributions and the notes to those schedules on pages 20 through 22 are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements taken as a whole. The additional information on pages 23 through 26 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the financial statements and, in our opinion for 2009 and 2008, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

We also have previously audited the financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, 2005, and 2004 (which are not presented herein), and we expressed unqualified opinions on those financial statements. In our opinion, the information on page 25 is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements from which it has been derived. Our reports for 2007, 2006, 2005 and 2004 on the required supplementary information (pages 20 and 21) stated that we applied limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurements and presentation of the supplementary information, but did not audit the information and expressed no opinion on it.

Legacy Professionals LLP

May 21, 2010

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)

This section presents Management's Discussion and Analysis of the financial position and performance of the Forest Preserve District Employees' Annuity and Benefit Fund of Cook County's (Plan) for the year ended December 31, 2009. This discussion is presented as an overview of the financial activities of the Plan and should be read in conjunction with the Plan's financial statements.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The following discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Plan's basic financial statements. The financial statements are prepared on an economic sources focus and accrual basis of accounting in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. The basic financial statements are described below:

Combining Statements of Pension Plan and Postemployment Healthcare Plan Net Assets provides a snapshot of account balances and net assets held in trust for future benefit payments and any liabilities as of the Plan's year end. Over time increases and decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Plan is improving or deteriorating.

Combining Statements of Changes in Pension Plan and Postemployment Healthcare Plan Net Assets shows the revenues (additions) and expenses (deductions) during the year, where additions less deductions equal net increase (decrease) in net assets. The net increase (decrease) in net assets illustrates the change in net assets as reported in the Statements of Plan Net Assets from the prior year to the current year.

Notes to the Financial Statements provides additional information that is essential to achieving a better understanding of the data provided in the financial statements.

Required Supplementary Information provides two schedules and related notes concerning actuarial information, funded progress and employer contributions.

Additional Information includes schedules of administrative expenses, professional and consulting fees, investment expenses, additions by source and deductions by type and taxes receivable.

Financial Highlights

Net assets increased by \$16,738,241 or 11.5% from \$145,319,547 at December 31, 2008 to \$162,057,788 at December 31, 2009. Comparatively, net assets decreased by \$54,840,810 or 27.4% from \$200,160,357 at December 31, 2007 to \$145,319,547 at December 31, 2008. The change in net assets for both years was primarily due to the fluctuation in the fair market value of the investments.

The rate of return of the Plan's investment portfolio was 17.9% for 2009, -24.1% for 2008 and 5.1% for 2007.

The actuarial funded ratio of the combined pension and the postemployment healthcare plans for 2009 was 68.75% compared to 82.49% for 2008. The decrease in the funded ratio during 2009 was due to a change in actuarial assumptions, primarily the mortality rates. The 2007 funded ratio was 86.73%.

Plan Net Assets

The condensed Statements of Plan Net Assets reflects the resources available to pay benefits to members. A summary of the Plan Net Assets is as follows:

As of December 31,

				Current Year		
				Increase/(Deci	ease) in	
	<u>2009</u>	<u>2008</u>	<u>2007</u>	<u>Dollars</u>	Percent	
Total assets	\$ 174,499,289	\$ 153,364,798	\$ 215,718,916	\$ 21,134,491	13.8%	
Total liabilities	12,441,501	8,045,251	15,558,559	4,396,250	<u>54.6</u> %	
Net assets	\$ 162,057,788	<u>\$ 145,319,547</u>	\$ 200,160,357	<u>\$ 16,738,241</u>	<u>11.5</u> %	

Changes in Plan Net Assets

The condensed Statements of Changes in Plan Net Assets reflects the changes in the resources available to pay benefits to members. A summary of the Changes in Plan Net Assets is as follows:

Changes in Plan Net Assets For the Years Ended December 31,

							Current Y	
						Increa	se/(Dec	rease) in
		<u>2009</u>	<u>2008</u>		<u>2007</u>	<u>Dol</u>	<u>lars</u>	Percent
Additions:								
Employer contributions	\$	2,543,694	\$ 2,023,448	\$	3,287,040	52	0,246	25.7%
Employee contributions		2,418,794	2,119,208		1,986,605	29	9,586	14.1%
Investment income (loss) (includes security								
lending activities)		24,683,791	(46,414,013)		9,989,189	71,09	7,804	153.2%
Other		219,919	 127,464		245,951	9	2,455	72.5%
Total additions	_	29,866,198	 (42,143,893)	<u></u>	15,508,785	72,01	0,091	170.9%
Deductions:								
Benefits		12,423,521	12,159,401		11,868,717	26	4,120	2.2%
Refunds		472,953	518,400		464,666	(4	5,447)	-8.8%
Employee transfers								
to (from) Cook County		118,754	(119,434)		130,674	23	8,188	199.4%
Administrative expenses		112,729	 138,550		114,674	(2	5,821)	-18.6%
Total deductions		13,127,957	 12,696,917		12,578,731	43	1,040	3.4%
Net increase (decrease)		16,738,241	(54,840,810)		2,930,054	71,57	9,051	130.5%
Net assets:								
Beginning of year	1	45,319,547	 200,160,357		197,230,303	(54,84	0,810)	-27.4%
End of year	<u>\$ 1</u>	62,057,788	\$ 145,319,547	\$ 2	200,160,357	16,73	8,241	11.5%

Additions to Plan Net Assets

Total additions were \$29,866,198 in 2009, \$(42,143,893) in 2008 and \$15,508,785 in 2007.

Employer contributions increased to \$2,543,694 in 2009 from \$2,023,448 in 2008 but were lower than employer contributions of \$3,287,040 in 2007. Employer contributions are statutorily set at 1.30 times employee contributions collected two years prior.

Employee contributions, including permissive service credit purchases, increased to \$2,418,794 in 2009 from \$2,119,208 in 2008 and \$1,986,605 in 2007. Employees contribute 8.5% of covered wages.

Net investment income (loss) totaled \$24,683,791 for 2009 compared to \$(46,414,013) for 2008. Comparatively, net investment income totaled \$9,989,189 for 2007. The increase (decrease) in investment earnings resulted primarily from the overall performance of the financial markets from year to year.

Deductions to Plan Net Assets

Total deductions were \$13,127,957 in 2009, \$12,696,917 in 2008 and \$12,578,731 in 2007.

Benefits increased to \$12,423,521 in 2009 from \$12,159,401 in 2008 and \$11,868,717 in 2007 due primarily to the 3% annual cost of living increases for annuities.

Refunds decreased to \$472,953 in 2009 from \$518,400 in 2008 and increased from \$464,666 in 2007 due to fluctuations in refund applications.

Plan member transfers to (from) Cook County resulted from Forest Preserve District employees transferring employment to (from) Cook County. The accrued pension benefit obligation is transferred to (from) the Forest Preserve Fund (to) from the Cook County Fund.

The cost to administer the Plan decreased to \$112,729 in 2009 from \$138,550 in 2008, primarily due to a decrease in bank charges. Comparatively, the cost to administer the Plan increased to \$138,550 in 2008 from \$114,674 in 2007.

Funding Status

The actuarial assets, liabilities and funding status for the Plan (including the pension and postemployment healthcare plans) are provided below:

Actuarial Values December 31,

				Current Y Increase/(Decr	
	<u>2009</u>	<u>2008</u>	<u>2007</u>	Dollars	Percent
Actuarial assets Actuarial liabilities	\$ 188,396,534 274,032,351	\$ 196,277,679 237,927,630	\$ 203,043,217 234,120,194	\$ (7,881,145) 36,104,721	-4.0% 15.2%
Unfunded actuarial liabilities	\$ 85,635,817	<u>\$ 41,649,951</u>	\$ 31,076,977	\$ 43,985,866	105.6%
Funded ratio	<u>68.75</u> %	<u>82.49</u> %	<u>86.73</u> %		

Actuarial assets decreased to \$188,396,534 in 2009 from \$196,277,679 in 2008 due to large investment losses during 2008 after using the five-year smoothing of market values used to determine the actuarial value of assets. Comparatively, actuarial assets decreased to \$196,277,679 in 2008 from \$203,043,217 in 2007.

Actuarial liabilities increased to \$274,032,351 in 2009 from \$237,927,630 in 2008 due to a change in actuarial assumptions, primarily the mortality rates. Comparatively, actuarial liabilities increased to \$237,927,630 in 2008 from \$234,120,194 in 2007.

The **funded ratio** is one indicator of the financial strength of the Plan, measuring the ratio of net assets available to meet the actuarially determined future liabilities of the Plan. The decrease in the funded ratio to 68.75% in 2009 from 82.49% in 2008 was due to the changes in the actuarial assets and actuarial liabilities as explained in the preceding paragraphs. Comparatively, the funded ratio decreased to 82.49% in 2008 from 86.73% in 2007.

Contact Information

This financial report is designed to provide the employer, plan participants and others with a general overview of the Plan's finances and show accountability for money it receives. Questions concerning any data provided in the report or requests for additional information should be addressed to:

Forest Preserve Employees' Annuity and Benefit Fund of Cook County Attention: Executive Director 33 North Dearborn Street Suite 1000 Chicago, IL 60602

COMBINING STATEMENTS OF PENSION PLAN AND POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE PLAN NET ASSETS

DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008

		2009		-	2008	
Assets	Total	Pension	Postemployment Healthcare	<u>Total</u>	Pension	Postemployment <u>Healthcare</u>
Слѕн	\$ 80,373	\$ 80,373		\$ 1,053,712	\$ 1,053,712	69
RECEIVABLES Employer contributions less allowance of \$121,658						
in 2009 and \$311,733 in 2008	2,553,587	2,435,168	118,419	2,168,409	2,030,752	137,657
Employee contributions Accrued investment income	9,099 618,970	9,099 618,970	. ,	9,354 372,070	9,354 372.070	
Receivable for securities sold	725,816	725,816	1	15,402	15,402	•
Other	•	•	\$	1,714	1,714	
Total receivables	3,907,472	3,789,053	118,419	2,566,949	2,429,292	137,657
INVESTMENTS						
Equities U.S. Government and government agency obligations	33.051.002	33.051.002	1 1	71,182,808	71,182,808	; 1
Corporate bonds	16,466,158	16,466,158		6,566,481	6,566,481	
Collective investment funds	13,491,390	13,491,390	ì	44,266,268	44,266,268	
Short term investments	5,690,413	5,690,413		7,680,461	7,680,461	•
Total investments	160,675,993	160,675,993		143,223,075	143,223,075	
COLLATERAL HELD FOR SECURITIES ON LOAN	9,835,451	9,835,451	1	6,521,062	6,521,062	8
Total assets	174,499,289	174,380,870	118,419	153,364,798	153,227,141	137,657
Lyabilities						•
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE	57,747	57,747	•	54,952	54,952	•
HEALTHCARE INSURANCE PAYABLE	118,419		118,419	137,657	•	137,657
Due to County Employees' and Officers'	100 011			(
AINNULLY AND DENEFIL FUND OF COOK COUNTY PAYABLE FOR SECURITIES PURCHASED	1,179,097	1,151,757		1,195,879 36,671	1,195,8/9 36.671	. 1
SECURITIES LENDING COLLATERAL	9,835,451	9,835,451	•	6,521,062	6,521,062	,
SECURITIES LENDING PAYABLE	99,030	99,030	•	99,030	99,030	•
Total liabilities	12,441,501	12,323,082	118,419	8,045,251	7,907,594	137,657
NET ASSETS HELD IN TRUST FOR Pension benefits	162,057,788	162,057,788		145,319,547	145,319,547	
Postemployment healthcare benefits Total	\$ 162 057 788	\$ 162 057 788		\$ 145 319 547	\$ 145 319 547	
(See schedule of funding progress on page 20)					110,010,011	7

(See schedule of funding progress on page 20)

Forest Preserve District Employees' Annuity and Benefit Fond of Cook County

COMBINING STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN PENSION PLAN AND POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE PLAN NET ASSETS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008

		2009			2008	
	E	É	Postemployment	£		Postemployment
Additions	#IO	Lension	ricalmeare	<u>10121</u>	<u>Fension</u>	Healthcare
Employer contributions	\$ 2,543,694	\$ 1,282,642	\$ 1,261,052	\$ 2,023,448	\$ 523,928	\$ 1.499.520
Employee contributions						
Salary deductions	2,308,641	2,308,641	•	2,069,046	2,069,046	•
Refund repayments	61,103	61,103	•	16,313	16,313	•
Former and miscellaneous service payments	13,126	13,126	ì	577	577	
Concaons in the of disability	35,924	35,924	•	33,272	33,272	-
Total employee contributions	2,418,794	2,418,794		2,119,208	2,119,208	•
Investment income (loss)	-					
Net appreciation (depreciation) in fair value of investments	21,293,389	21,293,389	•	(49,843,804)	(49,843,804)	•
Dividends	2,134,853	2,134,853	•	1,924,214	1,924,214	•
Interest	1,387,313	1,387,313		1,541,243	1,541,243	•
Commission recapitre	•	•	•	2,233	2,233	
T acc invasory and acreased acc	24,815,555	24,815,555		(46,376,114)	(46,376,114)	•
Net investment income (loss)	24 611 222	24 511 222	•	(174,736)	(174,736)	
Securities landing	27,11,122	24,011,232		(+6,250,650)	(40,330,630)	
ncome	85.076	85 076	1	163 901	163 001	
Expenses	(12.517)	(12.517)	•	(27,054)	(27,054)	•
Net securities lending income	72.559	72.559		136 837	136 837	
Other						
Medicare Part D subsidy	98.510	,	98.510	69,439	•	69 439
Prescription plan rebates	119 611	,	119611	30.701		20.781
Miscellaneous	1.798	1.798	119,011	18.744	18 744	39,281
Total other additions	219,919	1.798	218.121	127.464	18 744	108 770
Total additions	29,866,198	28,387,025	1,479,173	(42,143,893)	(43.752.133)	1.608.240
Deductions						
Benefits						
Annity						
Employee	9,144,321	9,144,321	,	8,955,164	8,955,164	
Sponse and children	1,552,939	1,552,939		1,368,001	1,368,001	,
Disability C. H						
Ordanary Dust,	225,234	225,234		207,396	207,396	
Healthcare	21,854	21,834	1 479 173	20,600	20,600	1 608 240
Total benefits	17 473 471	10 944 348	1 470 173	12 150 401	10.551.151	1,000,240
Refunds	472.953	472.953	6,1,5,11,0	518 400	518 400	1,006,240
Employee transfers to (from) Cook County	118.754	118,754		(119 434)	(119 434)	
Administrative expenses	112,729	112,729		138,550	138,550	
Total deductions	13,127,957	11,648,784	1,479,173	12,696,917	11,088,677	1,608,240
Net increase (decrease)	16,738,241	16,738,241		(54,840,810)	(54,840,810)	•
Net assets held in trost for benefits						-
Beginning of year	145,319,547	145,319,547	•	200,160,357	200,160,357	•
End of year	\$ 162,057,788	\$ 162,057,788	•	\$ 145,319,547	\$ 145,319,547	. 69
(See schedule of funding progress on page 20)						

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Forest Preserve District Employees' Annuity and Benefit Fund of Cook County is administered in accordance with Chapter 40, Article 5/10 of the Illinois Compiled Statutes (formerly Chapter 108-1/2, Article 10 of the Illinois Revised Statutes).

New Accounting Pronouncement - Effective during the year ended December 31, 2009, the Plan implemented GASB 56, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance in the AICPA Statement on Standards on Auditing Standards. The pronouncement establishes accounting and financial reporting standards for related party transactions, subsequent and going concern considerations. The adoption of the statement did not have a significant impact on the Plan.

Method of Accounting - The financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Employer contributions are recognized in the levy year. Employee contributions are recognized in the period in which contributions are due. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the Plan.

Investments - Investments are reported at fair value, which generally represents reported market value as of the last business day of the year. Short term investments are carried at cost which approximates fair value. Where less than an entire holding is sold, average value is used to determine realized gain or loss.

Allocated Expenses - Administrative expenses are initially paid by the County Employees' and Officers' Annuity and Benefit Fund of Cook County (County Fund). These expenses are allocated between the County Fund and the Plan on a pro rata basis as applicable.

General Fixed Assets - The Plan has set a capitalization threshold of \$100,000 for all fixed asset types. As of December 31, 2009, the Plan does not have any capitalized fixed assets.

Reclassifications - Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year amounts to conform to the current year presentation.

Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Subsequent Events - Subsequent events have been evaluated through May 21, 2010, which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued.

NOTE 2. PLAN DESCRIPTION

The Forest Preserve District Employees' Annuity and Benefit Fund of Cook County was established on July 1, 1931 and is governed by legislation contained in the Illinois Compiled Statutes, particularly Chapter 40, Article 5/10. The Plan can be amended only by the Illinois Legislature. The Forest Preserve District Employees' Annuity and Benefit Fund of Cook County is a single employer defined benefit pension plan with a defined contribution minimum. The Plan was created for the purpose of providing retirement, death and disability benefits for full-time employees of the Forest Preserve District of Cook County, Illinois (Forest Preserve District) and the dependents of such employees. The Plan is considered to be a component unit of Forest Preserve District of Cook County, Illinois and is included in the Forest Preserve District's financial statements as a pension trust fund.

The Statutes authorize a Board of Trustees (Board) of nine members to carry out the provisions of the Article. According to the Article, two members of the Board are ex officio, four are elected by the employee members of the Plan and three are elected by the annuitants of the Plan. The two ex officio members are the Comptroller of Cook County, or someone chosen by the Comptroller, and the Treasurer of Cook County, or someone chosen by the Treasurer. All members of the Board are fiduciaries with respect to the Plan and are statutorily mandated to discharge their duties, as such, solely in the interest of the Plan's participants and beneficiaries.

The Board has the powers and duties required in the Article to collect all contributions due to the Plan, to invest the Plan's reserves, to have an annual audit, to appoint employees, to authorize or suspend payment of any benefit and to have exclusive original jurisdiction in all matters relating to or affecting the Plan. The Board approves its own budget, which is prepared by the administrative staff of the Plan. The Board is required annually to submit to the Forest Preserve District Board of Cook County a detailed report of the financial affairs and status of the Plan. Provisions in other articles of Chapter 40 require the Board to submit its annual audit and actuarial valuation reports to the State of Illinois Department of Insurance, as well as another detailed annual report, the form and content of which is specified by the Department of Insurance.

Covered employees are required to contribute 8.5% of their salary to the Plan. If an employee leaves covered employment without qualifying for an annuity, accumulated contributions are refunded with interest (3% or 4% depending on when the employee became a participant). The Forest Preserve District's total contribution is the amount of contributions made by the employees to the Plan in the calendar year two years prior to the year for which annual applicable tax is levied, multiplied by 1.30. The source of funds for the Forest Preserve District's contributions has been designated by State Statute as the Forest Preserve District's annual property tax levy. The Forest Preserve District's payroll for employees covered by the Plan for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 was \$24,967,115 and \$23,474,621 respectively.

NOTE 2. PLAN DESCRIPTION (CONTINUED)

The Forest Preserve District Employees' Annuity and Benefit Fund provides retirement as well as death and disability benefits. Employees age 50 or over with at least 10 years of service are entitled to receive a minimum formula annuity of 2.4% for each year of credited service to a maximum benefit of 80% of the final average monthly salary. For retirees between age 50 and age 60, the monthly retirement benefit is reduced 1/2 percent for each month the participant is under age 60. This reduction is waived for participants having 30 or more years of credited service.

At December 31, 2009 and 2008, participants consisted of the following:

	<u>2009</u>	<u>2008</u>
Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits:		
Employees	342	347
Spouse	148	142
Children	11	9
Disability	8	8
	509	506
Current employees:		
Vested	249	250
Nonvested	_212	192
	461	442
Total	970	948

Participants should refer to the summary plan description or applicable State Statutes for more complete information.

NOTE 3. FUNDED STATUS AND FUNDING PROGRESS

As of December 31, 2009, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the Plan was 68.75% funded on an actuarial basis. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was \$274,032,351 and the actuarial value of assets was \$188,396,354, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of \$85,635,817. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the Plan) was \$24,967,115, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 342.99%.

NOTE 3. FUNDED STATUS AND FUNDING PROGRESS (CONTINUED)

The Schedule of Funding Progress, presented as required supplemental information (RSI) following the notes to the financial statements, present multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial values of the Plan assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation is as follows:

Valuation date

December 31, 2009

Actuarial cost method

Entry Age Normal

Amortization method

Level Dollar

Remaining amortization period

30 years

Asset valuation method

Five Year Smoothed Average Market

Actuarial assumptions:

Investment return rate

7.5% compounded annually

Projected salary increases

Total

Inflation

3.0% per year 2.0% per year

Merit

5.0% per year

Postretirement annuity increase

3.0% compounded per year

Mortality rates - 2009

UP-1994 Mortality Table for Males, rated down 2 years; UP-1994 Mortality Table for Females, rated

down 1 year

- 2008

1983 Group Annuity Mortality Table, male and

female, rated up to two years

Termination rates

Based on recent experience of the Plan

Retirement rates

Rates of retirement for each age from 50 to 75 based on recent experience of the Plan. All employees are assumed to retire by age 75

Medical trend rate

8.0% in the first year, decreasing by .5% per year

until an ultimate rate of 5.0% is reached

NOTE 4. SUMMARY OF EMPLOYER FUNDING POLICIES

Employer contributions are funded primarily through a Forest Preserve District tax levy which is currently limited when extended to an amount not to exceed an amount equal to the total contributions by the employees to the Plan made in the calendar year two years prior to the year for which the annual applicable tax is levied, multiplied by 1.30.

The combined actuarial valuations of the pension and retiree health insurance benefits of the Plan as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 indicate the annual required contribution to be \$7,273,214 and \$6,094,316 for 2009 and 2008, respectively. The annual required contribution is based on an annual projected payroll of \$24,967,115 for 461 active members as of December 31, 2009 and \$23,474,621 for 442 active members as of December 31, 2008 and is computed as follows.

	<u>2009</u>	<u>2008</u>
Normal cost	\$ 5,878,215	\$ 5,356,280
30-year level dollar amortization of the unfunded liability	3,390,342	2,529,693
	9,268,557	7,885,973
Less estimated employee contributions	(1,995,343)	(1,791,657)
Actuarially determined contribution requirement	7,273,214	6,094,316
Expected net employer contribution from tax levy after 2.7% loss	(2,512,857)	(2,138,669)
Expected employer contribution short-fall of		
actuarially determined contribution requirement	\$ 4,760,357	\$ 3,955,647
Required tax levy multiple	3.76	3.70
Present authorized multiple	1.30	1.30

A Schedule of Funding Progress is located in the Required Supplementary Information on page 20. This schedule provides information about progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due.

NOTE 5. INVESTMENT SUMMARY

The Plan is authorized to invest in bonds, notes, certificates of indebtedness, mortgage notes, real estate, stocks, shares, debentures, or other obligations or securities as set forth in the "prudent person" provisions of the State Statutes. All of the Plan's financial instruments are consistent with the permissible investments outlined in the State Statutes and any index-linked financial instruments are limited to those indices that replicate the permissible investments outlined in the State Statutes. The following table presents a summarization of the fair value (carrying amount) of the Plan's investments as of December 31, 2009 and 2008. Investments that represent 5% or more of the Plan's net assets held in trust for benefits are separately identified.

	<u>2009</u>		<u>2008</u>
<u>Investments</u>			
Equities	\$ 91,977,030		\$ 71,182,809
U.S. Government and government agency obligations	33,051,002		13,527,057
Corporate bonds	16,466,158		6,566,481
Collective investment funds:			
Equity	4,606,017		3,032,440
Fixed income:			
NTGI Daily Aggregate Bond Index Fund	8,885,373		41,233,827
Short term investments:			, ,
EB Temporary Investment Fund	5,546,794	*	7,650,673
Others	 143,619		 29,788
Total invesments	\$ 160,675,993		\$ 143,223,075

^{*} Does not meet the 5% threshold in current year.

Investment Risk

Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 40, *Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures*, specifies the disclosure requirements for deposits that are not covered by depository insurance and investment securities that are uninsured and are not registered in the name of the government or trust agent.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the Plan will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities in the possession of an outside party.

The Plan had no investments that were uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counterparty, or by its trust department or agent, but not held in the Plan's name as of December 31, 2009 and 2008.

NOTE 5. INVESTMENT SUMMARY (CONTINUED)

Investment Risk (continued)

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations. For the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Plan's investment policy set the average credit quality for each manager's total fixed income portfolio (corporate and U.S. Government holdings) of not less than A- by two out of three credit agencies (Moody's Investor Service, Standard & Poors and/or Finch). The following table presents a summarization of the Plan's credit quality ratings of investments at December 31, 2009 and 2008 as valued by Moody's Investors Service, Standard & Poor's and/or Finch:

Type of Investment	Rating	<u>2009</u>	<u>2008</u>
U.S. Government and			
government agency obligations	Aaa/AAA	\$ 32,882,708	\$ 13,527,057
	A/A	33,316	-
	Baa/BBB	29,072	-
	Not Rated	105,906	lan .
		\$ 33,051,002	<u>\$ 13,527,057</u>
Corporate bonds	Aaa/AAA	\$ 1,418,072	\$ 123,126
	Aa/AA	1,486,857	1,403,472
	A/A	7,939,589	3,757,356
	Baa/BBB	5,621,640	938,505
	Caa/CCC	_	344,022
		<u>\$ 16,466,158</u>	\$ 6,566,481
Collective investment funds - fixed income	Not Rated	\$ 8,885,373	\$ 41,233,827
Short term investments	Aaa/AAA	\$ 139,410	\$ -
	Aa/AA	-	190
	Not Rated	5,551,003	7,680,271
		\$ 5,690,413	\$ 7,680,461

NOTE 5. INVESTMENT SUMMARY (CONTINUED)

Investment Risk (continued)

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. Investments held for longer periods are subject to increased risk of adverse interest rate changes. For the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Plan's investment policy set the duration for each manager's total fixed income portfolio to fall within plus or minus 30% of the duration for the fixed income performance benchmark (*Barclays Capital Aggregate Fixed Income*, which was 4.55 years at December 31, 2009 and 3.67 years at December 31, 2008). The following table presents a summarization of the Plan's debt investments at December 31, 2009 and 2008 using the segmented time distribution method:

Type of Investment	Maturity	<u>2009</u>	<u>2008</u>
U.S. Government and government agency	1 - 5 years 6 - 10 years	\$ 15,239,218 4,776,850	\$ 9,216,730 3,243,307
obligations	Over 10 years	13,034,934 \$ 33,051,002	1,067,020 \$ 13,527,057
Corporate bonds	Less than 1 year 1 - 5 years 6 - 10 years Over 10 years	\$ - 7,765,932 6,224,228 2,475,998	\$ 344,024 4,087,244 2,135,213
		\$ 16,466,158	\$ 6,566,481

NOTE 5. INVESTMENT SUMMARY (CONTINUED)

Investment Risk (continued)

Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment or a deposit. For the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Plan's investment policy limited the amount of investments in foreign equities to 20% of total Plan assets. The Plan's exposure to foreign currency risk at December 31, 2009 and 2008 is as follows:

Type of Investment	Fair Value (USD) <u>2009</u>		Fair Value (USD) 2008
Equities:			
Australian dollar	\$	352,257	\$ -
British pound		5,422,194	3,901,958
Canadian dollar		-	243,039
Danish krone		501,152	-
European euro		6,093,492	4,853,637
Hong Kong dollar		779,315	-
Japanese yen		2,244,192	1,944,307
Norwegian krone		559,266	94,556
Singapore dollar		197,151	495,874
Swiss franc		1,874,927	1,959,847
U.S. dollar		73,953,084	57,689,590
Total equities	\$	91,977,030	\$ 71,182,808

For the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, net realized gain (loss) on investments sold, reflecting the difference between the proceeds received and cost value of securities sold, was (\$4,690,677) and (\$10,350,123) respectively. These amounts are included in the net appreciation (depreciation) in fair value of investments as reported on the Combining Statements of Changes in Pension Plan and Postemployment Healthcare Plan Net Assets. The calculation of realized gains and losses is independent of the calculation of net appreciation (depreciation) in the fair value of plan investments. Investments purchased in a previous year and sold in the current year result in their realized gains and losses being reported in the current year and their net appreciation (depreciation) in plan assets being reported in both the current year and the previous year(s).

NOTE 6. DERIVATIVES

The Plan's investment policy permits the use of financial futures for hedging purposes only. Speculation and leveraging of financial futures within the portfolio is prohibited. The Plan uses financial futures to mange portfolio risk and to facilitate international portfolio trading.

A derivative security is a financial contract whose value is based on, or "derived" from, a traditional security, an asset, or a market index. Derivative instruments include futures and forward contracts as part of the Plan's portfolio.

Derivative transactions involve, to varying degrees, credit risk, interest rate risk and market risk. Credit risk is the possibility that a loss may occur because a party to a transaction fails to perform according to the previously agreed upon terms. Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. Market risk is the possibility that a change in interest or currency rates will cause the value of a financial instrument to decrease or become more costly to settle.

Forward contracts are used to hedge against fluctuations in foreign currency-denominated assets used primarily in portfolio trade settlements. These contracts are a cash contract in which a seller agrees to deliver a specific cash commodity to a buyer sometime in the future. Forward agreements are subject to the creditworthiness of the counterparties, which are principally large financial institutions. At December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Plan's investments included the following forward currency contract balances:

	<u>2009</u>	<u>2008</u>
Forward Currency Contract Receivables	\$ 453,367	\$ -
Forward Currency Contract Payables	\$ 454,433	<u>\$ -</u>

All of the Plan's financial instruments are carried at fair value on the Combining Statement of Pension Plan and Postemployment Health Plan Net Assets included in investments. The gain or loss on financial instruments is recognized and recorded on the Combining Statement of Changes in Pension Plan and Postemployment Health Plan Net Assets as part of investment income.

NOTE 7. SECURITIES LENDING

State Statutes and the investment policy permit the Plan to lend its securities to broker-dealers and other entities with a simultaneous agreement to return collateral for the same securities in the future. The Plan's custodian, acting as the lending agent, lends securities for collateral in the form of cash, U.S. Government obligations and irrevocable letters of credit equal to 102% of the fair value of domestic securities plus accrued interest and 105% of the fair value of foreign securities plus accrued interest.

As of November 10, 2008, the Plan has a limit as to the amount of securities on loan of \$10 million. Prior to November 10, 2008, the Plan was not limited as to the amount of securities on loan. The Plan does not have the right to sell or pledge securities received as collateral unless the borrower defaults. The average term of securities loaned was 119 days for 2009 and 76 days for 2008; however, any loan may be terminated on demand by either the Plan or the borrower. As of November 10, 2008, cash collateral was invested in a separately managed portfolio, which had an average weighted maturity at December 31, 2009 and 2008 of 91 and 224 days, respectively. Prior to November 10, 2008, cash collateral was invested in a short term investment pool.

As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the fair value (carrying amount) of loaned securities was \$9,584,272 and \$6,344,784 respectively. As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the fair value (carrying amount) of collateral received by the Plan was \$9,835,451 and \$6,521,062 respectively.

Although the Plan's securities lending activities are collateralized as described above, they involve both market and credit risk. In this context, market risk refers to the possibility that the borrower of securities will be unable to collateralize the loan upon a sudden material change in the fair value of the loaned securities. Credit risk refers to the possibility that counterparties involved in the securities lending program may fail to perform in accordance with the terms of their contracts.

Indemnification deals with the situation in which a client's securities are not returned due to the insolvency of a borrower. The contract with the lending agent requires indemnification to the Plan if borrowers fail to return the securities fail to pay the Plan for income distributions by the issuers of securities while the securities are on loan.

During 2008, a security within the collateral pool became insolvent resulting in an insufficiency in the collateral pool. To prevent any one investor from incurring an additional loss should another investor exit the securities lending program, the Plan's custodian allocated a portion of the insolvent security to each investor in the collateral pool. As a result of the allocation, the Plan incurred an unrealized investment loss and corresponding securities lending payable in the amount of \$99,030 during the year ended December 31, 2008. No change was made during the year ended December 31, 2009

During 2009, there were no losses due to default of a borrower or the lending agent.

NOTE 7. SECURITIES LENDING (CONTINUED)

A summary of securities loaned at fair value as of December 31:

	<u>2009</u>	<u>2008</u>
Securities loaned - cash collateral:		
Equities	\$ 3,395,450	\$ 1,326,701
U.S. Government and government		
agency obligations	6,188,813	3,485,320
Corporate bonds	9	1,432,715
Total securities loaned - cash collateral	9,584,272	6,244,736
Securities loaned - non-cash collateral:		
Equities		100,048
Total	\$ 9,584,272	\$ 6,344,784

NOTE 8. COMMITMENT

As of December 31, 2009, the Plan had capital commitments of \$6,000,000 for two limited partnership agreements.

NOTE 9. POSTEMPLOYMENT GROUP HEALTHCARE BENEFIT PLAN

The Plan has adopted GASB Statement No. 43, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans, which establishes uniform financial reporting standards for Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) plans.

Plan Description

The Forest Preserve District Employees' Annuity and Benefit Fund of Cook County administers a Postemployment Group Healthcare Benefit Plan (PGHBP), a single-employer defined benefit postemployment healthcare plan. PGHBP provides a healthcare premium subsidy to annuitants who elect to participate in PGHBP. The Plan is currently allowed, in accordance with State Statutes, to pay all or a portion of medical insurance premiums for the annuitants. Presently, the Plan subsidizes approximately 55% and 70% of the monthly premiums for employees and spouse annuitants, respectively. The remaining premium cost is borne by the annuitant.

PGHBP is administered in accordance with Chapter 40, Article 5/10 of the Illinois Compiled Statutes, which assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the Plan's Board of Trustees.

At December 31, 2009 and 2008, the number of annuitants and surviving spouses whose cost to participate in the program was subsidized, totaled 282 and 279 respectively.

NOTE 9. POSTEMPLOYMENT GROUP HEALTH BENEFIT PLAN (CONTINUED)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Method of Accounting - PGHBP's financial statements have been combined with the Plan's financial statements and are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. The Plan considers the premium subsidy an additional retirement benefit, with no contribution rate or asset allocation associated with it. The cost for postemployment group health benefits is approximately equal to the premium subsidy. Actual costs may differ based on claims experience. Healthcare premium subsidies are recognized when due and payable.

Contributions - The Plan funds PGHBP on a "pay-as-you-go" basis.

Administrative Costs - Administrative costs associated with PGHBP are paid by the Plan.

Medical Trend Rate - 8.0% in the first year, decreasing by .5% per year until an ultimate rate of 5.0% is reached.

NOTE 10. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Plan shares Trustees and office space with the County Fund. The Plan reimburses the County Fund for shared administrative services provided by the County Fund. During the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, the County Fund allocated administrative expenditures of \$66,184 and \$57,636 respectively.

As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, the Plan owes the County Fund \$1,179,097 and 1,195,879, respectively.

NOTE 11. PRONOUNCEMENTS ISSUED NOT YET EFFECTIVE

In June 2007, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 51, *Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intangible Assets*. This statement defines an intangible asset's required characteristics, and generally requires that they be treated as capital assets. Statement No. 51 is effective for the Plan's fiscal year ending December 31, 2010. The Plan is currently evaluating the impact of adopting Statement No. 51.

NOTE 11. PRONOUNCEMENTS ISSUED NOT YET EFFECTIVE (CONTINUED)

In June 2008, GASB issued Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments. This statement specifically requires governments to measure most derivative instruments at fair value in their financial statements that are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Statement No. 53 is effective for the Plan's fiscal year ending December 31, 2010. The Plan is currently evaluating the impact of adopting Statement No. 53.

In March 2009, GASB issued Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions. This statement establishes fund balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which a government is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources reported in governmental funds. Statement No. 54 is effective for the Plan's fiscal year ending December 31, 2011. The Plan is currently evaluating the impact of adopting Statement No. 54.

In December 2009, GASB issued Statement No. 57, *OPEB Measurements by Agent Employers and Agent Multiple-Employer Plans*. This statement considers the timing and frequency of the measurement of actuarial liabilities for OPEB by agent employers and also considers the guidelines regarding the use of the alternative measurement method by agent employers with small individual OPEB plans. The provisions related to the frequency and timing of measurements are effective for the Plan's fiscal year ending December 31, 2012. The Plan is currently evaluating the impact of adopting Statement No. 57.

In December 2009, GASB issued Statement No. 58, Statement on Accounting and Financial Reporting for Chapter 9 Bankruptcies. This statement provides accounting and financial reporting guidance for governments that have been granted protection from creditors under Chapter 9 of the United States Bankruptcy Code. The statement includes an analysis of the financial reporting consequences for governments that have been granted protection under Chapter 9. Statement No. 58 is effective for the Plan's fiscal year ending December 31, 2010. Retroactive application is required for all prior periods presented during which a government was in bankruptcy. The Plan is currently evaluating the impact of adopting Statement No. 58.

	•				
	REQUIRED SU	PPLEMENTAR	RY INFORMA	ATION	
٦					
•					

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

V.s. Padad		Actuarial	Actuarial Accrued		Funded	Covered	UAAL as a Percentage of Covered
Year Ended			Liability (AAL)	AAL (UAAL)	Ratio	Payroll	Payroll
December 31,	-	<u>(a)</u>	<u>(b)</u>	<u>(b-a)</u>	<u>(a/b)</u>	<u>(c)</u>	(b-a)/(c)
Pension Bene	fits						
2004	(1)	\$186,560,109	\$245,321,025	\$ 58,760,916	76.05%	\$16,635,794	353.22%
2005		\$189,066,378	\$217,588,298	\$ 28,521,920	86.89%	\$18,077,621	157.77%
2006	(2)	\$193,511,049	\$196,983,226	\$ 3,472,177	98.24%	\$19,172,756	18.11%
2007	(2)	\$203,043,217	\$205,392,258	\$ 2,349,041	98.86%	\$21,078,316	11.14%
2008	(2)	\$196,277,679	\$212,373,326	\$ 16,095,647	92.42%	\$23,474,621	68.57%
2009	(1)(2)	\$188,396,534	\$244,625,664	\$ 56,229,130	77.01%	\$24,967,115	225.21%
Postemploym	ent Gro	up Healthcare B	enefit Plan (PGHB	P)			
2006		\$ -	\$ 39,448,815	\$ 39,448,815	0.00%	\$19,172,756	205.75%
2007		\$ -	\$ 40,605,811	\$ 40,605,811	0.00%	\$21,078,316	192.64%
2008		\$ -	\$ 36,004,405	\$ 36,004,405	0.00%	\$23,474,621	153.38%
2009	(1)	\$ -	\$ 43,142,977	\$ 43,142,977	0.00%	\$24,967,115	172.80%
Changes in A	ctuariai	! Assumptions					
2006	(3)	\$ -	\$ (9,851,148)	\$ (9,851,148)	0.00%		
2007	(4)	\$ -	\$ (11,877,875)	\$ (11,877,875)	0.00%		
2008	(4)	\$ -	\$ (10,450,101)	\$ (10,450,101)	0.00%		
2009	(4)	\$ -	\$ (13,736,290)	\$ (13,736,290)	0.00%		
Combined							
2004	(1)	\$186,560,109	\$245,321,025	\$ 58,760,916	76.05%	\$16,635,794	353.22%
2005		\$189,066,378	\$217,588,298	\$ 28,521,920	86.89%	\$18,077,621	157.77%
2006		\$193,511,049	\$226,580,893	\$ 33,069,844	85.40%	\$19,172,756	172.48%
2007		\$203,043,217	\$234,120,194	\$ 31,076,977	86.73%	\$21,078,316	147.44%
2008		\$196,277,679	\$237,927,630	\$ 41,649,951	82.49%	\$23,474,621	177.43%
2009	(1)	\$188,396,534	\$274,032,351	\$ 85,635,817	68.75%	\$24,967,115	342.99%

^{(1) =} Change in actuarial assumptions.

See notes to required supplementary information.

^{(2) =} Pension benefits only. The information for 2005 and prior includes the PGHBP.

^{(3) =} Due to a change in the interest rate assumption for the PGHBP (pension benefits and combined reports - 7.5%, PGHBP - 5.0%).

^{(4) =} Due to a change in the interest rate assumption for the PGHBP (pension benefits and combined reports - 7.5%, PGHBP - 4.5%).

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

			Annual Required		Required Statutory		Employer	Percent of ARC
Year Ended		Co	ntribution (1)		Basis (2)	C	ontributions	Contributed
December 31,			(ARC) (a)		<u>(b)</u>		<u>(c)</u>	<u>(c/a)</u>
Pension Benefit	S							
2004		\$	9,326,465	\$	4,039,896	\$	3,890,142	41.71%
2005		\$	7,466,836	\$	2,846,034	\$	3,224,743	43.19%
2006	(3)	\$	2,691,753	\$	2,577,485	\$	1,532,343	56.93%
2007	(3)	\$	2,809,494	\$	3,329,502	\$	1,995,300	71.02%
2008	(3)	\$	3,329,502	\$	2,138,669	\$	523,928	15.74%
2009	(3)	\$	4,498,036	\$	2,512,857	\$	1,282,642	28.52%
Postemploymen	t Group	э Нес	althcare Benefi	it Plan ((PGHBP)			
2006	•	\$	3,747,117	\$	-	\$	1,187,670	31.70%
2007		\$	3,729,144	\$	-	\$	1,291,740	34.64%
2008		\$	3,785,850	\$	-	\$	1,499,520	39.61%
2009		\$	3,490,173	\$	-	\$	1,261,052	36.13%
Changes in Acti	uarial A	1ssun	nptions					
2006	(4)	\$	(1,063,504)	\$	-			
2007	(5)	\$	(611,216)	\$. _			
2008	(5)	\$	(1,021,036)	\$	-			
2009	(5)	\$	(714,995)	\$	-			
Combined								
2004		\$	9,326,465	\$	4,039,896	\$	3,890,142	41.71%
2005		\$	7,466,836	\$	2,846,034	\$	3,224,743	43.19%
2006		\$	5,375,366	\$	2,577,485	\$	2,720,013	50.60%
2007		\$	5,927,422	\$	3,329,502	\$	3,287,040	55.45%
2008		\$	6,094,316	\$	2,138,669	\$	2,023,448	33.20%
2009		\$	7,273,214	\$	2,512,857	\$	2,543,694	34.97%

^{(1) = 30} Year level dollar amortization beginning in 2005.

⁴⁰ Year level dollar amortization for 2004 and prior.

^{(2) =} Tax levy after 2.7% overall loss beginning in 2004. Tax levy after 1.8% overall loss for 2003 and prior.

^{(3) =} Pension benefits only. The information for 2005 and prior includes PGHBP.

^{(4) =} Due to a change in the interest rate assumption for the PGHBP (pension benefits and combined reports - 7.5%, PGHBP - 5.0%).

^{(5) =} Due to a change in the interest rate assumption for the PGHBP (pension benefits and combined reports - 7.5%, PGHBP - 4.5%).

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Notes to Schedule of Funding Progress and Schedule of Employer Contributions

The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was determined as part of the actuarial valuation at the date indicated. Additional information as of the latest actuarial valuation follows:

Valuation date	December 31, 2009
Actuarial cost method	Entry Age Normal
Amortization method	Level Dollar
Amortization period	30 years

Asset valuation method Five Year Smoothed Average Market

Actuarial assumptions

Investment rate of return

Pension benefits
7.5% compounded annually
Retiree health insurance plan
4.5% compounded annually
Combined
7.5% compounded annually

Projected salary increases

Inflation 3.0% per year

Merit 2.0% per year

Total 5.0% per year

Postretirement annuity increases 3.0% compounded per year for

employee and widow(er) annuitants

Medical trend rate

 2011
 8.0%

 2012
 7.5%

 2013
 7.0%

 2014
 6.5%

 2015
 6.0%

 2016
 5.5%

 2017 and later
 5.0%

Mortality rates UP-1994 Mortality Table for Males,

rated down 2 years

UP-1994 Mortality Table for Females,

rated down 1 year

Retirement age assumptions Based on actual past experience

assume all employees retire by age 75

,			
	•		
	A DDITION	IAL INFORMATION	
	ADDITION	AL INFORMATION	
	·		
			•

SCHEDULES OF ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES AND PROFESSIONAL AND CONSULTING FEES

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008

	<u>2009</u>	<u>2008</u>
Administrative expenses		
Administrative expenses allocated from County		
Employees' and Officers' Annuity and Benefit		
Fund of Cook County	\$ 66,184	\$ 57,636
Bank charges	7,446	46,808
Election expense	2,588	-
Membership	-	3,000
Professional and consulting fees	27,511	23,106
Regulatory filing fees	9,000	8,000
Total	<u>\$ 112,729</u>	<u>\$ 138,550</u>
Professional and consulting fees		
Actuarial service	\$ 3,349	\$ 2,510
Audit	20,000	15,875
Consulting	1,284	1,950
Legal	2,547	2,471
Lobbyist	331	300
Total	\$ 27,511	\$ 23,106

SCHEDULES OF INVESTMENT EXPENSES

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008

	<u>20</u>	009		2008
Investment manager expense				
Ariel Capital Management	\$	152	\$	13,000
Bear Stearns & Co., Inc.		-		7,554
BNY Mellon CIS		4,589		-
Channing Capital Management	2	24,754		_
Fiduciary Management Associates		7,395		1,677
Holland Capital Management		-		10,974
Lazard Asset Management, LLC	7	78,083		65,294
LM Capital Group, LLC	3	4,804		19,430
Morgan Stanley		_		11,396
Northern Trust Quantitative Advisors		6,291		11,619
RhumbLine Advisers		4,350		2,764
UBS Global Asset Management		-		15,277
William Blair & Company	3	4,489		6,694
Total investment manager expenses	19	4,907		165,679
INVESTMENT CONSULTING FEES				
Marquette Associates, Inc.		4,416		4,104
Investment custodian fees				
BNY Mellon		5,000		4,953
Total investment expenses	\$ 20	4,323	<u>\$</u>	174,736

ADDITIONS BY SOURCE

					N	et Investment				
						and Net				
						Securities				
]	Employer]	Employee		Lending				
Year Ended	Co	ntributions	Contributions Income (Loss)					Other	Total	
December 31,		(1)		<u>(2)</u> <u>(3)</u>		<u>(3)</u>	<u>(4)</u>		<u>Additions</u>	
2004	\$	3,890,142	\$	2,020,255	\$	15,490,826	\$	17,712	\$ 21,418,935	
2005	\$	3,224,743	\$	2,627,465	\$	8,107,038	\$	4,760	\$ 13,964,006	
2006	\$	2,720,013	\$	1,690,781	\$	18,117,244	\$	175,844	\$ 22,703,882	
2007	\$	3,287,040	\$	1,986,605	\$	9,989,189	\$	245,951	\$ 15,508,785	
2008	\$	2,023,448	\$	2,119,208	\$	(46,414,013)	\$	127,464	\$ (42,143,893)	
2009	\$	2,543,694	\$	2,418,794	\$	24,683,791	\$	219,919	\$ 29,866,198	

DEDUCTIONS BY TYPE

				Employee Fransfers				
Year Ended			1	to (from)	Adr	ninistrative		Total
December 31,	<u>Benefits</u>	Refunds	<u>Cc</u>	ook County	E	Expenses]	<u>Deductions</u>
2004	\$ 11,361,642	\$ 1,305,039	\$	507,604	\$	136,235	\$	13,310,520
2005	\$ 11,108,689	\$ 730,332	\$	186,159	\$	113,138	\$	12,138,318
2006	\$ 11,465,912	\$ 346,117	\$	345,410	\$	108,566	\$	12,266,005
2007	\$ 11,868,717	\$ 464,666	\$	130,674	\$	114,674	\$	12,578,731
2008	\$ 12,159,401	\$ 518,400	\$	(119,434)	\$	138,550	\$	12,696,917
2009	\$ 12,423,521	\$ 472,953	\$	118,754	\$	112,729	\$	13,127,957

^{1 -} Includes net tax levy.

^{2 -} Includes deductions in lieu of disability.

^{3 -} Includes realized net gain or loss on investments sold and starting in 2005, net securities lending.

^{4 -} Includes Medicare Part D, prescription plan rebates and miscellaneous income. 2006 is the first year for Medicare Part D and prescription plan rebates.

SCHEDULE OF TAXES RECEIVABLE

DECEMBER 31, 2009

Levy Year	Gross <u>Levy</u>	Uncollected Balance	Reserve for Loss and Costs	Net Uncollected <u>Balance</u>
2008 2009 Total	\$ 2,198,000 2,582,587	\$ 92,568 2,582,587 \$ 2,675,155	\$ 51,846 69,722 \$ 121,568	\$ 40,722 2,512,865 \$ 2,553,587

Note:

Uncollected taxes for the years 2007 and prior are fully reserved. 2008 tax levy includes net Illinois Replacement Tax of \$220,020. 2009 tax levy includes net Illinois Replacement Tax of \$258,558.